
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Council 
Councillor Mrs McKenzie (Mayor) 
Councillor Ms Merry (Deputy Mayor) 
Councillors Allen, Angell, Atkinson, Bhandari, Dr Barnard, 
Bettison OBE, D Birch, Mrs Birch, Brossard, Brown, Brunel-Walker, 
Dudley, Finch, Ms Gaw, Gbadebo, Mrs L Gibson, MJ Gibson, 
Green, Mrs Hamilton, Harrison, Mrs Hayes MBE, Ms Hayes, 
Heydon, Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Kirke, Leake, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, 
McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Neil, Parker, Porter, Skinner, 
Temperton, Tullett, Turrell, Virgo and Wade 

Wednesday 11 March 2020, 7.30  - 8.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell,  
RG12 1JD 

 
Timothy Wheadon 
Chief Executive 

 

 

Agenda 

Item Description Page 

1.  Apologies for Absence  

2.  Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest to 
the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when the 
interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 

 

3.  Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 
- Stage 2 Submission  

3 - 32 

 To approve the Boundary Review Working Group’s proposal for a warding 
pattern for Bracknell Forest in response to the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England’s Stage 2 consultation. 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Kirsty Hunt, 01344 353108, kirsty.hunt@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any special 
arrangements can be made. 

Published: 3 March 2020 



TO: COUNCIL 
11 March 2020 

 
  

 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 

Stage 2 Submission 

Chief Executive/Returning Officer – Democratic & Registration Services 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is reviewing 
Bracknell Forest Council’s electoral arrangements.  The new arrangements for the 
Borough are scheduled to come into effect at the Council elections in May 2023.  The 
Commission’s review is undertaken in two stages.  The first stage to determine the 
future Council size was completed on 7 January.  The outcome was that the 
Commission is minded to recommend that 40 councillors should be elected to 
Bracknell Forest Council in future; two fewer than the current arrangements. 

1.2 Stage Two of the review will determine a new pattern of electoral wards to 
accommodate 40 councillors.  The Commission has opened a consultation inviting 
proposals for the new warding pattern.  This phase of the consultation closes on 
16 March 2020.   

1.3 The cross-party Boundary Review Working Group appointed by Council on 17July 
worked with support from officers to draft a proposed Borough-wide warding pattern.  
This report seeks Council’s approval to the recommended submission. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Council agrees the cross-party Boundary Review Working Group 
proposal on a future warding pattern for Bracknell Forest Council which is 
appended to this report, for submission to the Commission by 16 March 2020. 

3 Reasons for Recommendation 

3.1 To agree a Council submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England for the future warding pattern for Bracknell Forest Council. 

4 Alternative Options Considered 

4.1 The Working Group considered various warding patterns as part of its deliberations. 

5 Supporting Information 

5.1 In October 2018 the LGBCE advised that a review of the Council’s electoral 
arrangements would take place.  Bracknell Forest boundaries have not been 
reviewed since 2002.  The review is intended to address the unequal levels of 
electoral equality in Bracknell Forest that have arisen since 2002.  The review has 
two stages; the first determines the future Council size and the second will look at 
future warding patterns, including: 

3

Agenda Item 3



 The total number of wards 

 Ward boundaries 

 The number of councillors elected to each ward 

 The names of each ward 

5.2 An initial meeting to agree the review timetable was held on 27 March 2019 with the 
LGBCE Chairman, the Chief Executive of the Commission, the Leader of the Council, 
the Returning Officer (Council Chief Executive) and the Head of Democratic & 
Registration Services.  Members were briefed on the process by the LGBCE at the 
17 July Council meeting.   

5.3 Following this briefing a cross-party Member Working Group, chaired by Cllr Dale 
Birch, was established with the following terms of reference: 

 To ensure full Member involvement in, and support to, the electoral review 
process. 

 To consider options on the future size of the Council i.e. the number of elected 
councillors, taking into account governance arrangements, scrutiny and 
regulatory functions and councillors’ representational roles; and to formulate draft 
recommendations on Council size for consideration by Council. 

 To support officers in the provision of information required by the LGBCE and the 
drafting of the Electoral Review document. 

 To recommend a pattern of wards to Council for submission to the LGBCE that 
demonstrates how the statutory criteria set by the LGBCE have been met. 

5.4 Stage One of the review process has been completed and the Commission has 
advised the Council that it is minded to recommend that 40 councillors should be 
elected to the Council in future, two fewer than the current arrangements.  This was 
consistent with the Working Group’s recommendation that was agreed by Council on 
13 November 2019.  The attached proposal is based on a Council size of 40. 

5.5 Stage Two of the review has now commenced.  The Commission has opened a 
consultation on a warding pattern for the Borough which closes on 16 March 2020.  
During this time anyone can submit a warding pattern. 

5.6 The Council’s Boundary Review Working Group was reconvened to develop and 
recommend to Council a Borough-wide warding pattern in response to the 
consultation, that demonstrates how the statutory criteria set by the Commission 
have been met.  The criteria are: 

 To deliver electoral equality 

 To reflect community interests and local identities 

 To promote effective and convenient local government 

5.7 It is important to note that the Commission will accept the proposal that provides the 
strongest evidence against the statutory criteria.  The Working Group’s submission is 
set out in full in the proposal appended to this report.  It seeks to balance parity of 
numbers with natural communities whist taking into account major ‘barriers’ such as 
main roads. 

5.8 The Commission will publish its draft recommendations in June 2020 and responses 
can be made until 10 August 2020.  The Commission’s final recommendations will be 
published in November 2020.  The Order will be laid in Parliament in early 2021 and 
the new arrangements will take effect from the May 2023 Borough elections. 

4



6 Consultation and Other Considerations 

Legal Advice 

6.1 Stage Two of the electoral review has been undertaken in accordance with the 
advice and guidance provided by the LGBCE.  The remainder of the relevant legal 
issues are addressed within the report. 

Financial Advice 

6.2 There are no financial implications arising directly as a result of this report, however if 
the Council size is reduced to 40 there will be savings in relation to Members’ Basic 
Allowance and provision of ICT kit.  The scale of any savings cannot be quantified 
until the completion of Stage Two of the review. 

Other Consultation Responses 

6.3 The Council is a consultee to the LGBCE’s consultation on a warding pattern for 
Bracknell Forest. 

6.4 As part of its consultation the Commission hosted a stakeholder briefing and question 
and answer session, which the Council facilitated, to explain how the review was 
being undertaken and how interested parties could submit a proposal.  The 
Commission invited all Parish/Town councillors and clerks to the briefing plus 
Borough councillors, local community organisations and charities. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.5 Not required. 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.6 There are no strategic risk management issues arising directly from this report. 

Background Papers 

Further information about the electoral review process can be found on the LGBCE website 

http://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Corporate%20Documents/technical-
guidance-2014%20(reduced).pdf  
 
 
Contact for further information 
Ann Moore: 01344 352260 
Ann.moore@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

5

http://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Corporate%20Documents/technical-guidance-2014%20(reduced).pdf
http://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Corporate%20Documents/technical-guidance-2014%20(reduced).pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

  BRACKNELL FOREST COUNCIL 
ELECTORAL REVIEW 
 
Stage Two Response – Ward Pattern Arrangements 
March 2020 

7



 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 

PAGE 
 

01  Introduction 

 
 

01  Developing a boundary proposal 

 
 

02  Context for Bracknell Forest 

 
 

03  Seeking electoral equality 

 
 

05  Creating a pattern of wards 

 
 

24  Ward names 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



1 | P a g e  
 

Introduction 
 

This is Bracknell Forest Council’s submission to the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England’s Stage Two consultation on a warding pattern for the Borough.  This phase of the 
consultation closes on 16 March 2020.   

 

<<INSERT COUNCIL DECISION>> 

 

The Commission’s review is undertaken in two stages.  The first stage to determine the future 
Council size was completed on 7 January.  The outcome was that the Commission is minded to 
recommend that 40 councillors should be elected to Bracknell Forest Council in future; two fewer 
than the current arrangements.  This proposal is based on there being 40 councillors in 2023. 

Developing a boundary proposal 
 

The Council’s Electoral Review Working Group was reconvened to develop a proposal for a 
Borough-wide ward pattern for Bracknell Forest and to recommend a pattern of wards to Council 
for submission to the Commission, that demonstrates how the statutory criteria set by the 
Commission have been met. 

In developing its proposals on ward patterning the Working Group took account of the 
Commission’s decision at Stage 1 on councillor numbers and of the statutory criteria on ward 
patterning which are: 

To deliver electoral equality 

To reflect community interests and local identities 

To promote effective and convenient local government. 

 

 

 

Throughout their deliberations the Working Group aimed to ensure that: 

• No wards will exceed +/- 10% variance from the perfect electoral equality of 2500 
electors per councillor 

• Communities will be recognised and kept intact wherever possible 

• The total number of councillors will not exceed the Commission’s preferred number 
of 40 

• Wards will only cross Parliamentary boundaries where there are robust reasons to 
do so, for example to improve community links 

• Identifiable boundaries such as major roads, waterways and railway lines will be 
used as ward boundaries where this is appropriate and does not adversely affect 
community cohesion 

• The warding pattern will comprise two and three-Member wards to promote effective 
local government which is likely to be compromised by the inclusion of single-
Member wards 

 

9



2 | P a g e  
 

Context for Bracknell Forest 
 

Bracknell Forest consists of a 1950’s first generation New Town which has seen several phases of 
subsequent growth, along with a number of older villages across a varied geographic area.  The 
principle residential conurbation is Bracknell itself with secondary population centres built up 
around the historic towns and villages of Sandhurst, Crowthorne, Binfield, Warfield and Winkfield. 

Each area has its own distinct identity or sub-identity and each is covered by the respective 
parish/town council areas. 

Bracknell Forest is forecast to have significant population growth over the coming six years and 
beyond.  A total of 4,064 new dwellings have planning permission and are forecast for construction 
in the years leading up to 2025.  This is not taking account of smaller planning changes that 
increase population density in existing developments and other population trends. 

Taking account of these changes the upper end of Bracknell Forest’s own electorate forecast takes 
the Borough’s electorate number to 107,406.  Recognising that build out rates can vary and the 
possibility that not all developments will be occupied by 2025 a mid-point figure of 101,484 
between the Commission’s forecast and the Borough’s has been accepted for the purposes of this 
review.  This affords the Council a degree of tolerance between electoral equality if developments 
do not proceed as planned and conversely allows the Council to absorb elector numbers at the 
upper end of the forecast if all developments are delivered by 2025. 

Boundaries 

There are no notable natural boundaries within the Borough so the main through-roads or green 
spaces often act as accepted limits to urban areas with communities contained within.  Where 
neighbourhoods were originally developed and specific community hubs established, communities 
have largely retained intangible borders along the original lines.  However, the A329(M)/A322 
corridor does mark a distinct division running north west/south east through the Borough. 

Bracknell Forest Borough is bordered by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead in the 
north; Wokingham Borough to the South/West and Surrey Heath District to the east.  Two 
parliamentary constituencies cover parts of the Borough.  Bracknell Constituency encompasses 
most of the borough ‘taking on’ the additional areas of Wokingham Without and Finchampstead 
from Wokingham Borough Council.  Windsor parliamentary constituency includes the three 
northern parishes. 

 

Binfield 

The village of Binfield is in the north of the Borough within the Windsor Parliamentary Constituency 
and is a traditionally self-contained community.  A number of new, large residential developments 
has resulted in significant population growth in recent years which will continue as more of these 
dwellings are constructed and occupied.  There are community facilities, a library and shops 
situated towards the centre of the area which provide a focal point for the community. 

 

Bracknell Town 

Established in 1949 as part of the post-war New Town development to help cater for post-war 
reconstruction and London overspill, the vision for Bracknell New Town was the development of 
seven self-contained neighbourhoods with their own shops, schools, doctors and other public 
facilities with a town centre devoted primarily to commercial development and other industry 
segregated away from residential areas. As a result individual local identities are particularly strong 
in these areas. 

These self-contained communities have maintained their distinct characteristics, and each has 
well-established community hubs to which the local population looks.  The original 1950’s 
neighbourhoods of Priestwood, Easthampstead and Bullbrook were joined by further expansions in 
the decades following with Great Hollands, Harmans Water, Wildridings, Hanworth and Martins 
Heron developed at a later date. 

10



3 | P a g e  
 

Bracknell Town centre itself has undergone an extensive transformation and redevelopment in 
recent years which has brought about increased residential development in the area with a number 
of office conversions and new apartment buildings under construction.  It is forecast that the town 
centre will have some of the most significant increases in residential growth over the coming years 
further changing the character and size of the area. 

 

Crowthorne 

Crowthorne is a village in the southern part of the Borough separated from Bracknell New Town by 
Swinley Forest (The Crown Estate).  A portion of Crowthorne lies across the border and into 
Wokingham Borough. 

The population of Crowthorne has been comparatively stable in recent decades but, future 
development (which is already well advanced as Buckler’s Park) on the site of the old Transport 
Research Laboratory will result in a significant increase of residential properties in the area. 

 

Sandhurst 

Situated on the county border between Berkshire, Surrey and Hampshire, Sandhurst Town 
maintains the second largest population centre in the Borough.  Sandhurst is geographically closer 
to Camberley (Surrey) than Bracknell Town itself. 

 

Warfield 

Warfield is a historic village in the north of the Borough within the Windsor Parliamentary 
Constituency.  Unlike other parts of the Borough that were developed with specific community 
areas in mind, the expansion of the Whitegrove development in Warfield focussed community 
facilities around a large supermarket where the library, parish council offices and community centre 
are also situated. 

 

Winkfield 

Winkfield completes the triple set of historic villages in the north of the Borough within the Windsor 
Parliamentary Constituency.  Demographically similar to both Binfield and Warfield it is a 
geographically large area with large rural spaces in between the population centres.  The majority 
of residential properties are located in the North Ascot area of the parish with other residential 
properties along and off Chavey Down Road. 

Seeking electoral equality 
 

The Commission is minded to recommend a Council size of 40 councillors which means that 
electoral equality will be achieved if each councillor represents 2,537 electors.  Electoral equality is 
the only criterion which can be measured with precision. 

The information in the tables below demonstrates how the Council’s proposal achieves good 
electoral equality. 

Table A shows the current position and the forecast for 2025 if no changes to the number of 
councillors and wards are made. 

The forecast electorate for 2023 is 101,484.  Combined with a reduction of two councillors this 
increases the average elector/councillor ratio to 2537. 

The Council is proposing 40 councillors for 16 wards; eight two-Member wards and 8 three-
Member wards.  Currently there are 42 councillors for 18 wards; 12 two-Member wards and six 
three-member wards.   

 
 

11



4 | P a g e  
 

Table A – current position 

Ward name No of cllrs Electorate 
2019 

Variance 
2019 

Forecast 
electorate 
2025 

Variance 
2025 

Ascot 2 4,183 -2% 4,646 -4% 

Binfield with Warfield 3 7,897 23% 9,574 32% 

Bullbrook 2 4,739 11% 5,867 21% 

Central Sandhurst 2 3,965 -7% 4,238 -12% 

College Town 2 3,909 -9% 4,195 -13% 

Crown Wood 3 5,991 -7% 6,414 -12% 

Crowthorne 2 4,160 -3% 5,771 19% 

Great Hollands North 2 5,568 30% 5,969 24% 

Great Hollands South 2 3,820 -11% 4,105 -15% 

Hanworth 3 6,193 -4% 6,662 -8% 

Harmans Water 3 6,736 5% 7,705 6% 

Little Sandhurst & 
Wellington 

2 4,231 -1% 4,737 -2% 

Old Bracknell 2 4,377 2% 4,661 -4% 

Owlsmoor 2 3,955 -8% 4,229 -12% 

Priestwood & Garth 3 5,847 -9% 6,420 -11% 

Warfield Harvest Ride 3 6,163 -4% 6,559 -10% 

Wildridings & Central 2 4,025 -6% 5,304 10% 

Winkfield and Cranbourne 2 4,132 -3% 4,428 -8% 

Table B below shows that the Council’s proposal meets the Commission’s ambition to deliver 
electoral fairness. 

Table B – proposed position 

Proposed ward name No of cllrs Forecast electorate 2025 Variance 

Binfield 3 7358 -3.3% 

Bullbrook 3 7509 -1.3% 

College Town 2 4989 -1.7% 

Crowthorne 2 5501 +8.4% 

Easthampstead & Wildridings 3 7370 -3.2% 

Great Hollands North 2 5275 +4% 

Great Hollands South 2 5345 +5.3% 

Hanworth 3 7901 +3.8% 

Harmans Water 2 4908 -3.3% 

Priestwood & Garth 3 7786 +2.3% 

Sandhurst 3 6997 -8.1% 

Savernake 3 7305 -4% 

Warfield 2 5068 -0.1% 

Whitegrove 2 5403 +6.5% 

Wildmoor & Owlsmoor 2 5035 -0.8% 

Winkfield with Ascot 3 7733 +1.6% 

12



5 | P a g e  
 

 

Creating a pattern of wards 
 

Unlike electoral equality it is not possible to measure levels of community identity.  Evidence is set 
out below for each proposed ward which provides a range of information regarding communities 
and local links, such as how local people use local facilities, where boundaries such as roads or 
railway lines divide or unite communities, whether there are community groups representing a 
particular area, whether there are good transport links. 

The following section provides a commentary on a ward by ward basis which explains the rationale 
used to formulate the proposal.  The information is split into two areas: wards within the Windsor 
Parliamentary Constituency and those within the Bracknell Constituency. 

Ward boundary proposals: Windsor Constituency 

 

Binfield 

 

 

 

The proposed ward follows the Parish boundary excluding Wykery Copse.  Although Wykery 
Copse currently sits within the Binfield with Warfield Ward in the Windsor Parliamentary 
constituency it has strong community ties to Jennett’s Park which lies in the Great Hollands North 
Ward within the Bracknell constituency.  The inclusion of Wykery Copse in Great Hollands resolves 
a long-standing anomaly. 

There is strong community interest and commitment to the parish identity, with a high regard for, 
and involvement in local schools.  The Binfield Learning Village was built to cater for local need 
and to provide local school places.  Local community facilities are well used and a community and 
health space facility is currently proposed for Blue Mountain. 

Forest Road provides a corridor that effectively links all areas of the proposed ward and provides a 
common transportation route.  Local footpaths and byways provide pedestrian links throughout the 
ward and connections are also provided by a range of cycle ways. 

 

Perfect electoral equality has not been achieved across all wards, however: 

• None exceed +/- 10% 

• 12 of the 16 wards have a variance of 5% or less 

• Only three wards have a variance of greater than 6% 

• The greatest variances occur in Crowthorne and Sandhurst wards which both have 
distinct communities.  The electoral equality problem cannot be solved by moving 
the suggested ward boundaries if coherent communities are to be retained 

• The arrangements broadly provide for effective and convenient local government 

•  

•  

•  

 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,358 (-3.3%) 

3 

13



6 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

14



7 | P a g e  
 

 

Warfield 

 

 

 

This proposed ward follows the Warfield Parish boundary to the west and east and encompasses 
part of the existing Binfield with Warfield and Winkfield and Cranbourne Wards. 

Warfield Park, a large self-contained “Park Home” community to the south-east of Warfield Parish, 
is geographically closer to the proposed Whitegrove Ward but there is no intrinsic community links 
to Whitegrove and has therefore been included in Warfield to ensure better electoral equality.  Two 
areas of Warfield Park are currently in the existing Winkfield and Cranbourne Ward. These have 
been brought together with the rest of Warfield Park in Warfield Ward which provides better 
representation for electors and brings the community together, which is currently artificially split. 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,068 (-0.1%) 

2 

15



8 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

16



9 | P a g e  
 

Whitegrove 

 

 

 

Whitegrove is a new ward which takes in the majority of the existing Warfield Harvest Ride Ward 
plus the area east of the current Priestwood and Garth Ward boundary split along Warfield Road. 

Two areas of Whitegrove around Goughs Lane and Priory Lane are currently split between the 
existing Warfield Harvest Ride and Bullbrook Wards.  Geographically access to these areas is via 
Whitegrove or Warfield.  The residents of these communities look to Whitegrove for their amenities 
and community links, therefore these areas have been incorporated into the proposed Whitegrove 
Ward.  As a result, the ward crosses the parliamentary boundary but the improvement to 
community links provides a robust reason to do so. 

The proposed ward retains the community identity of the development that was built in the late 
1980s and early 1990s.  The community looks to the Parish offices, community centre, library, 
doctor’s surgery and supermarket, which will form the heart of the new ward. 

 

 

Winkfield with Ascot 

 

 

 

The proposed Winkfield with Ascot Ward is geographically significant and encompasses the 
conurbations of North Ascot, Winkfield Row and Chavey Down and respects the Winkfield parish 
boundary.  It is a largely rural ward with the population centres close to one another therefore 
effective local government is not compromised. 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,403 (+6.5%) 

2 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,733 (+1.6%) 

3 

17



10 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

18



11 | P a g e  
 

 

Ward boundary proposals: Bracknell Constituency 

 

Bullbrook 

 

 

 

The current Bullbrook ward has been significantly redrawn to include a large proportion of 
the Town Centre in the west and the Martins Heron development in east. The proposal 
ensures that communities remain intact and delivers reasonable electoral equality. 

Changes made to the northern boundary have been undertaken to take account of the fact 
that the parliamentary boundary line is no longer the identifiable natural boundary it was 
previously. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,509 (-1.3%) 

3 

19



12 | P a g e  
 

 

 

College Town 

 

 

 

The proposed College Town ward is largely unchanged from the current ward but, 
addresses a longstanding anomaly that saw Avocett Crescent and surrounding areas that 
were included in Central Sandhurst ward. These residents maintain strong community ties 
to College Town. 

 

 

 

Crowthorne 

 

 

 

As outlined above Crowthorne is a geographically large area with the established 
population centred towards the western principal area boundary between Bracknell Forest 
and Wokingham Borough. Crowthorne is already split between the two boroughs. 

It has been challenging to meet all the Commission’s criteria when devising the proposed 
Crowthorne ward. The proposal has sought to maintain community identity where possible 
in Crowthorne Village itself whilst recognising that residents in the large residential 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 4,989 (-1.7%) 

2 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,501 (+8.4%) 

2 

20



13 | P a g e  
 

development at the Transport Research Laboratory (Bucklers Park) site also identify 
themselves with Crowthorne and use their facilities. 

While the TRL site is geographically closer to the Great Hollands South ward, there are no 
direct public transport links or easy access to facilities within that ward. 

In order to achieve reasonable electoral equality across the southern wards The Wildmoor 
area south of Lower Broadmoor Road has been included in the proposed Wildmoor and 
Owlsmoor ward. 

 

 

 

 

Easthampstead & Wildridings 

 

 

 

This proposed ward encompasses two distinct communities of Easthampstead and Wildridings 
which are currently part of Old Bracknell and Wildridings & Central Wards.  The two communities 
have similar demographics and community links.  Easthampstead Community Centre and shops 
act as a larger local hub for both communities alongside the amenities in Wildridings Square.  Mill 
Pond and Wildridings School are community resources used by both communities. 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,370 (-3.2%) 

3 

21



14 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

22



15 | P a g e  
 

 

Great Hollands North 

 

 

 

Great Hollands North remains largely intact except for the inclusion of the Wykery Copse 
part of Jennetts Park which is currently included within the existing Binfield with Warfield 
ward. 

While this crosses the parliamentary constituency boundary the area is separated from 
Binfield by the A329 dual carriageway and the residents have a strong community ties with 
the Jennetts Park more widely giving robust justification to make this change.  Jennetts 
Park looks to the community facilities at the centre of the development, including a school, 
community centre and a local supermarket. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,275 (+4%) 

2 

23



16 | P a g e  
 

 

Great Hollands South 

 

 

 

Great Hollands South remains largely intact. Any changes proposed do not impact 
community identity and ensure electoral equality between the wider Great Hollands area. 

 

 
 

Hanworth  

 
 
 
 
The established new town neighbourhood of Hanworth is retained in the submission. 
Existing boundaries in the west, south and east are maintained with the A3095, B3430 and 
A322 acting as hard boundaries respectively. 
 
The ward has been extended to the north and now encompasses the southern area of the 
current Old Bracknell ward. This does not impact community relations and achieves better 
electoral equality. 
 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,345 (+5.3%) 

2 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,901 (+3.8%) 

3 

24



17 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 

 

Harmans Water  

 
 
 
 
The current ward/ neighbourhood of Harmans Water has been largely retained but, revised 
to provide better electoral equality. The boundary to the south has been widely retained 
but, amended to exclude ‘The Warren’ which has no direct transport links or community 
connection to the rest of the proposed ward. 
 
The boundary to the north has been redrawn with the railway line used as the ward limit 
and the western boundary is broadly unchanged. The boundary has not been extended to 
the Bagshot Road as the residents in Hazel Hill, The Ridgeway and Woodridge Close 
maintain strong links with amenities in the proposed Easthampstead and Wildridings. 
 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 4,908 (-3.3%) 

2 

25



18 | P a g e  
 

 

 
 

 

Priestwood & Garth 

 

 

 

Priestwood and Garth ward has been largely maintained but with some expansion in the north and 
east to include residents residing within the Windsor parliamentary constituency boundary, 
however this approach helps maintain stronger community links, transport connections and access 
to amenities.  

 
 
 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,786 (+2.3%) 

3 

26



19 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Sandhurst 

 
 
 
 
 
The proposed Sandhurst ward encompasses the current wards of Little Sandhurst and 
Wellington and a large proportion of Central Sandhurst.  Wellington College and its 
surrounding areas are currently included within the existing Little Sandhurst and 
Wellington ward, however it maintains better community links with Crowthorne rather than 
Sandhurst and therefore are included in the proposed Crowthorne ward. 
  

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 6,997 (-8.1%) 

3 

27



20 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Savernake  

 
 

 

 
 
Savernake primarily encompasses all areas of the current Crown Wood ward but, has 
been slightly extended to the north to include The Warren. The community as whole 
includes three distinct areas: Crown Wood, Forest Park and The Warren. 
 
The name ‘Savernake’ has been proposed to unite these communities taking account of 
‘Savernake Lake’ which is a popular natural space at the centre of the proposed ward. 
 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 7,305 (-4%) 

3 

28



21 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 

29



22 | P a g e  
 

 

Wildmoor & Owlsmoor  

 
 
 
 
 
The ward is primarily rural with the population clustered to the west of the current 
Owlsmoor ward. 
 
The existing boundaries of the current Owlsmoor ward have been largely maintained with 
an extension to the west to encompass the Wildmoor area of Crowthorne. This ensures 
better electoral equality. 
 

 

Proposed number of councillors 

Electorate and variance: 5,035 (-0.8%) 

2 

30



23 | P a g e  
 

Borough map of proposed wards 

 

 
 
The interactive map can be found here. 
 
 

31

https://rds.statmap.co.uk/map/map.html?login=bracknellforest_viewer&scenario=V.4_FINAL_DRAFT&sid=8ca05cfeca744dd93470de0f322d066a


24 | P a g e  
 

 
Ward names 
 

The names that have been proposed for each ward reflect the communities that are contained 
within them as far as possible and closely resemble existing ward names.  This is considered to be 
the best approach in order to continue to foster established community identities and local ties.  
The name ‘Savernake’ has been proposed for the ward with a number of distinct communities 
reflecting a natural space important to all at the heart of the proposed ward. 

32


	Agenda
	3 Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review - Stage 2 Submission
	Annex A - Working Group Proposal


